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I^ouise of Eortr^.

Tuesday, 2bfh February^ 1862.

NEW BRUNSWICK AND CANADA
RAILWAY AND LAND COMPANY
(Limited) Appellants^

AND

CONYBEARE, el al. . . . Respondents.

< JUDGMENT.

Lord Cliancelhr.—My Lords, this is a case in which an

Appeal has been presented to your Lordships from an order

made by the Lords Justices, giving relief to the Plaintiif, by
setting aside an executed contract, and directing certain con-

veyances consequent upon that contract to be rescinded, and

declaring that the Company is bound to take back the shares

which had been sold to the Plaintiff.

The original Decree in this cause was made by Vice-

Chancellor Sir John Stuart, dismissing the Bill, but without

costs. The Vice-Chancellor was of opinion that no one of the

charges contained in the Bill had been substantiated. The

case then went by Appeal before the Lords Justices, and was

heard at great length, and on new evidence. From the

Judgment which was given it would appear as if the Lords

Justices concui-red in the conclusion of the Vice-Chancellor,

A
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on all points save two ; on which two there is certainly no

very definite expression of opinion on the part of those

learned Judges.

One of those points appears to be this, that they seem to

have considered that certain Reports, dated in December,

1857, and in July, 1858, had been handed over by the

Secretary of the Company to the Respondent, with a repre-

sentation, either direct or indirect, that those Reports con-

tained an accurate statement of the then existing condition

of the Company ; they having been given by the Secretary to

the Respondent in, I think, the month of September, 1858,

about a twelvemonth after tlte making of one Report, and

three months after the making of the other.

The other point in which the Lords Justices also do not

express anything like a decided opinion is an alleged repre-

sentation made by the Secretary of the Company to the

Plaintifi', that the Company had an indefeasible title to certain

lands ; upon which the Lords Justices, in effect, say that they

are unable to tell whether the Company had a defeasible or

an indefeasible title, but that they find that the Company,

have been advised by an eminent counsel that the title was

defeasible ; and, therefore, giving no opinion on the point, and

consequently not deciding whether the representation was true

or false, the Lords Justices have mainly founded their decision

upon that uncertain expression of opinion.

My Lords, the nature of the case made by the Plaintiff is,

that the transaction ought to be rescinded on the ground of

misrepresentation. Your Lordships are well aware that when-

ever an application is made to a Court of Equity to set aside

a conveyance that has been made, the jurisdiction of the

Court of Equity for the purpose must be founded on some-

thing amounting to fraud—and if the ground alleged be mis-
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representation, either by the statement of what is false or by

the suppression of something that ought to have been dis-

closed, and so producing a false impression and conclusion,

the case so alleged must be shown, according to the language

of Lord Eldon, to amount to that which a Court of Equity

holds to be fraud.

But it is most essential in the administration of justice in

a Court of Equity, that the nature of the case, when it is

constituted of fraud, should be most accurately and fully stated

in the Bill of the Plaintiff. My Lords, it is impossible to

give relief merely upon a general charge that something has

been done by a party, or has been obtained from a party,

under the influence of fraud. It must be shown in what the

fraud consists, and how it has been effected ; and if the fraud

is alleged to consist in certain representations which were

untrue, and other facts are relied on for the purpose of show-

ing that they were untrue, those facts must, undoubtedly,

constitute a part of the case made by the Plaintiff,

Now, having generally adverted to these established prin-

ciples, I will invite your Lordships' attention for a few

moments to the nature of the case that is made on the part

of the Plaintiff.

The allegations of the Bill are divisible into two parts, so

far as they attempt to make out the case of misrepresentation.

One part of the allegations substantially amounts to this :

—

that the misrepresentations on which the Plaintiff relies were

contained in the two Reports of December, 1857, and July,

1858, given to him by the Secretary, to which I have already

adverted. The other part of the case consists of a narrative of

what was said or done by the Secretary, and what passed

between the Secretary and himself on the occasion of two

distinct interviews which he had with the Secretary at the

Office.

A 2



Now, in the first place, witli regjird to the Reports that

were produced to the Plaintiff by the Secretary, 1 certainly

am not at all disposed to advise your Lordships to throw any

doubt upon this doctrine, that if Reports arc made to the

Shareholders of a Company by their Directors, and the Reports

are adopted by the Shareholders at one of the appointed Meet-

ings of the Company, and those Reports are afterwards indus-

triously circulated, undoubtedly representations contained in

those Reports must be taken, after their adoption, to be repre-

sentations and statements made with the authority of the

Company, and therefore binding the Company.

1

Neither, my Lords, do I think it would be at all expedient

to question this conclusion, that if those Reports, having been

industriously circulated, shall be clearly shown to have been

the proximate and immediate cause of shares having been

bought from the Company by any individuals, or subscribed

for by any individuals, undoubtedly it will be impossible, con-

sistently with the principles of equity, to- permit the Company

to retain the benefit of that contract, and to keep the purchase-

money that has been so paid.

There may be a very different consideration applied to the

same transaction in a Court of Law and in a Court of Equity

;

because, when an attempt is made in a Court of Law to render

a party liable in damages for certain consequences of a mis-

representation, it is necessary to prove that the individual was

aware, at tho time, of the falsehood of the representation, or

ought to have been so aware ; but with regard to a claim for

the restitution of property acquired through false representations

made by an individual acting in the capacity of agent, although

the Company were no parties to those representations, and did

not distinctly authorise them, it would still appear to be incon-

sistent with natural justice to permit property acquired by the

Company through the medium of those representations to be



retained by them. So far, therefore, as these Reports are

concerned, tliey must be taken, I think, to be representations

made by the Company. I will presently invite your Lordships'

attention to what are the statements contained in those Reports.

But, passing on to the second head of the Plaintiff's case,

I beg your Lordships to observe what great danger would

ensue if a concluded transaction of this kind were permitted to

be afterwards questioned, upon the ground of some other

general conversation passing between the individual and the

Secretary of the Company at the Office of the Company.

Tliis gentleman appears to have gone to the Office of the

Secretary for the purpose of making inquiries. He represents

himself to have been received with great courtesy by the

Secretary, and a conversation to have taken place between

them. But there are no allegations in the Bill which at all

tend to show that representations were made by the Secretary

to the Plaintiff with a view to any definite statement made by

the Plaintiff, that he wanted to purchase shares in the Company,

and would be induced to do so, or not, in consequence of what

he might be told by the Secretary. It would be exceedingly

dangerous to hold the Company liable in consequence of a

loose general conversation of that kind.

But, my Lords, it may not be necessary to rest any decision

of your Lordships upon such considerations ; because I will

now beg your attention to the nature of the representations as

alleged in the Bill, and I think you will see that it would be

impossible, upon the utmost accurate sifting of the allegations

in tlie Bill, and the evidence in support of it, to arrive at the

conclusion that there was any material misrepresentation made

to the Plaintiff which induced him to enter into the contract

in question.

My Lords, these representations are divided, as I have
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already said, into those that arc contained in tlie Reports, and

those that were involved in conversations with the Secretary.

The representations contained in the Reports, as stated by tlie

Respondent, appear to be, first, a conclusion that he derived

from one of the Reports, that there were no liabilities of the

Company, because they were in the habit of paying for every-

thing with ready money.

Now that is an interpretation wiiich he puts upon a

particular passage in one of the Reports—a passage which, it

appears to me, he has entirely misconstrued—for, without

entering into any very accurate investigation as to the mean-

ing of the word "liquidation," your Lordships will at once

see, by referring to the passage in the Report, that it is utterly

impossible that any man could have understood it as implying

that the accounts were paid in New Brunswick every six

weeks. The object of the passage is clearly this, to show to

the Shareholders that the amount of the liabilities of the

Company for the works in New Brunswick were ascertained

every six weeks. And the next line, after speaking of the

liquidation, goes on to make this remark, " so that, when the

" accounts are sent to England and settled, there will no longer

" be any debt." Now it is perfectly clear, from these particular

words, in connexion with the passage in the antecedent line,

which speaks of the liquidation, that the liquidation of the

accounts in New Brunswick was represented as being some-

thing different from the settlement of the accounts in England.

I think it impossible to impute to the Report any intention

of representing to the Shareholders, much less to the public,

that all the debts incurred in New Brunswick were duly and

regularly paid every six weeks.

I think, therefore, that the first ground which is brought

forward by the Plaintiff in his Bill—and which was so brought

forward some time after he must have been well aware of the



truth of the facts—is not a ground ujwn which misrepresenta-

tion can be rested.

The other part of the Report wliich is referred to, is tliat

in which it is represented that the traffic on tlie portion of the

Line which was then opened exceeded the working expenses.

Now tliat is contained in the Report of 1857 ; and I must say,

with all respect, that I cannot concur in the remark of the

Ijords Justices, that the handing over to the Plaintiff the

Report made in 1857, containing that statement, without

more, in the month of September, 1858, ought to have been

taken by him as amounting to a statement that that was the

condition of things at the time when that Report was handed

over. There is no such allegation contained in the Bill ; and

unless there was a definite stateinont to that effect, no man in

his senses would arrive at the conclusion that, because a

Report which was made in December, 1857, was given to him

in September, 1858, therefore a representation with regard to

the traffic on the Line, made in December, 1857, must of

necessity, without more, be taken to be a representation re-

peated in the month of September, 1858. My Lords, I must

here particularly beg your Lordships' attention to the fact

that there is no charge whatever in this Bill, that when these

Reports were given to this gentleman they were accompanied

by any definite or certain statement by the Secretary that

the representat^'ons contained in those Reports were accurate

and truthful representations of the then existing state of cir-

cumstances.

Now, what the Company says, in answer to that particular

charge, appears to be true—namely, that in the month of

December, 1857, when the Report was made and issued, the

receipts of the Line did in reality exceed the working expenses

;

therefore, in the absence of any allegation or proof that this

gentleman was led distinctly to put faith in that statement, as
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a statement repeated again in September, 18f58, I cannot

advise yom* Lordships to rest at all upon that particular

allegation.

Then, my Lords, there is another statement contained in

the Report—a general statement—that there was no prob-

ability of any rival Line being carried out. Why, my Lords,

that is a matter as to which every individual who hears such a

statement would of necessity understand that it was a mere

conclusion of general opinion ; that is, not a misrepresentation

of fact, which must exist before you can found upon it as a

title to relief. I dismiss that part of the case, therefore, as

something which, whether it be true or false (but it is not

shown to be false), would be merely a speculative matter—

a

matter of opinion—constituting no ground whatever upon

which a charge of misrepresentation can be founded.

My Lords, there appears another statement which is partly

matter of report and partly rested upon an alleged conversation

with the Secretary, namely, the statement which the Respon-

dent brings forward that he was assured by the Secretary, and

that he also collected from the Reports, that the Directors had

the means, or had no reason to doubt that they would be able,

to finish their Line, having capital sufficient for that purpose.

Now, my Lords, in the first place, as far as the Report is

concerned, the language of the Report simply states that the

Directors have no reason to doubt that they will be able to

finish the Line within the capital assigned. That is a repre-

sentation only that the means afforded to them by the Acts of

Parliament, by the Provincial Acts, and by the grants made

by the Provincial Legislature, all of which would come within

the extent of the expression " capital assigned," would prove

sufficient for the portion of the Line that remained to be

made.

_ t
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My Lords, there is nothing at all to bring that represen-

tation into any kind of doubt. Tlie Respondent has not in

his Bill, nor has he by any evidence in support of his Bill, at

all proved to your Lordships' satisfaction that that represen-

tation was untrue, and untrue to the knowledge of the

Directors, either at the date of the Eeport or at the date of

his conversation with the Secretary. What the Respondent

relies upon principally is, tliat at the time when the conversa-

tion with the Secretary took place the Company were in a

state of financial embarrassment. My Lords, it might well

happen that the Company were in a state of financial embar-

rassment at a particular time, and yet that when the market

was better or an opportunity of enforcing the liabilities arose,

Tiiey might have ample means to complete the Line. It is

quite clear, from the language of this gentleman's own Bill,

that at the time when he applied to purchase the shares he

was himself well aware of temporary difficulties on the part of

the Company ; for the allegation contained in his Bill is, that

he took the precaution of consulting his broker before he

applied to the Secretary, and that he was told by the broker

that he understood that some of the Shareholders refused to

pay the calls, denying all liability and disputing the Com-

pany's power to enforce them. It might be very true, there-

fore, that the Company at that particular time were under

some financial difficulties. But there is no case made by the

Bill that there was either concealment from the Plaintiff or

misrepresentation made to the Plaintiff", so as to enable him to

come here and show that he was thereby induced in that state

of circumstances to purchase shares. The allegation in the

Bill is limited only to the competency of the capital for the

completion of the Line ; and the contrary to that is not, as I

have already observed, anywhere alleged.

There remains the more important consideration on which

the opinion of the Lords Justices (given, nevertheless, in the

B
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indefinite manner I have already described) mainly appears to

be rested. The conclusion at which the learned Judges

arrived appears to be this, that the Secretary having produced

to this gentleman certain grants of land, which were ex fade

absolute and indefeasible, must be taken by the production

of those grants to have represented to the Plaintiff that the

Company had an indefeasible title to those lands. My Lords,

I think that may be undoubtedly regarded as a strong con-

clusion, merely from the circumstance of the production of

those grants.

The other part of what passed appears to have been this,

that there was a certain Act of the Provincial Legislature,

passed in the 19th year of Her Majesty's reign, which was in

point of fact produced, with other Acts, to the Plaintiff at the

time of his first interview with the Secretary at the office of

the Company, but which Act was not included in a collection

of the Acts made by the former Company, anterior to the

time of the passing of that Act of the 19th of Her Majesty,

and which collection (to adopt the language of the Plaintiff)

the Secretary good-naturedly proposed to him to take away

with him.

Now, my Lords, it is necessary, very shortly, to review

the state of legislation with respect to this Company, and I

believe it may be correctly thus defined :—The grants of lands

made to this Company, speaking generally, were grants of lands

of a double description—they were made for two separate and

independent purposes. First of all, there were grants of lands

extending over an area sufficient for the construction of the

Line of Railway, and the necessary dep6ts or stations for the

use of the Railway. These were grants of land covering a

belt not exceeding, I think, 400 yards in breadth, and they

were made under and by virtue of one of the earlier statutes.

Ti. -.1 : 1-- .-•-.i-j. -.-J
XL wc«3 uuviuusiy ngiii aiiu
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pradent in the Legislature to reserve to itself a power of

re-entering into possession of those lands, supposing the Kail-

way were never constructed; and, accordingly, a power for

that purpose is contained in the 10th of the Queen—an Act of

the Provincial Legislature.

Subsequently, the Legislature having very great interest

in the making of this Eailway, two additional benefits were

conferred upon the Company—one being a subscription made
by the Legislature itself, by virtue of a subsequent Act ; and

the other being grants of land adjoining the Kailway, but

including a very extended belt, having a diameter of 10 miles

wide, that is, taking the track of the Railway as the medium
line, and extending five miles on the one side, and five on the

other.

Now these grants of lands were obviously made for the

encouragement of the Company, and therefore they are made

after the Company had become entitled thereto. The Act of

the Legislature proceeds upon this principle—that for every

£10,000 expended by the Company in making the Railway,

the Company were to have 10,000 acres of this more extended

belt of land granted to them, to enable them to go on with

further works. It is perfectly clear, therefore, that this grant

of land was made for a consideration, which, in the view of the

Legislature, must be taken to have been already paid by the

Company, when the Company had expended so much money

upon the work; and it would be impossible to hold, con-

sistently with any principles of ordinary justice, that, if the

Company should have failed ultimately to complete the Line,

the Legislature would be entitled to resume the particular

lands requisite for the construction of the Line, and that the

Legislature would be entitled to resume also the lands that

had been previously granted in consideration of the price

actually paid by the Company.

B 2
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Accordingly, my Lords, the subsequent Acts of the Legis-

lature must undoubtedly be construed with reference to this

broad principle, and this reasonable rule as to the intention of

the Legislature ; and, if your Lordships look at them with

this view, it is perfectly clear, when we come to the Statute of

the 19th of the Queen, that the 19th of the Queen intended

to repeat and to preserve the original right given by the 10th of

the Queen, to resume the land along the track of the Kailway.

But by another section, namely the 7th section, it confirms all

those grants of land which had been made under and by virtue

of the subsequent Acts of the Legislature, which were not

contemplated—nor was there any power to make them—at the

time when this statute of the 10th of the Queen, containing

the original power to resume, was passed. I take it, therefore,

to be perfectly clear, that tlie condition of resumption expressed

in the 19th of the Queen, is a condition intended to repeat the

original condition, and is applicable only to the same extent

as the original proviso or condition contained in the Act of the

10th of the Queen.

Now, my Lords, of course, in dealing with this particular

matter we deal with it only upon the materials that are pre-

sented to us by these contending parties, and any opinion that

is expressed by your Lordships upon this point is an opinion

limited to the case before you. I advert to that, because I

observe, in the Judgment of the Lords Justices, the Lords

Justices state that they will abstain from giving an opinion,

because it might prejudice the right of other parties.

i i

My Lords, if it be necessary for this case (as I think it is

necessary) to deal with the allegation of the Plaintiff, that the

Company have not an indefeasible title, any opinion expressed

by your Loidships upon that point will be confined entirely to

the issue before you in this case and the relative rights of

these parties, and v/ill not, in the smallest degree, affect any
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controverted question of right that may be raised between

other parties in a different case. But upon this particular

point, which has been much insisted upon by the Respondent,

I think it is perfectly clear that there was not only no sup-

pression of this Act of the Legislature, but I think it is

equally clear that the Act does not warrant the conclusion

contejided for by the Respondent. Moreover, my Lords, the

whole case, so far as it relates to this point, might be rested

upon this single observation. When the Respondent took

these shares and paid for them—in the eye of the law, and by

force of the statute under which this Company was formed

—

he must be considered to have actually executed the Deed of

Association. But the Deed of Association recites fully this

very Act of the Legislature, which he alleges to have been sup-

pressed ; and, therefore, the case is reduced to this :—A gentle-

man files a Bill to set aside a transaction, on the ground of

something being withheld from him, which is found to be

actually recited in the very deed by which the property is

conveyed to him. The attempt, therefore, to allege a case of

suppression in the face of such facts as these, is an attempt

which is altogether futile.

These, my Lords, I believe are all the allegations that are

to be found in this Bill ; and, what is more, independently of

the statements in the Bill, these representations which the

Plaintiff has made with reference to this case, appear to me

not to be warranted as to any conclusions of fact by the

evidence before us. I am obliged, therefore, to say that I

cannot, as far as my opinion goes, hesitate with regard to the

Decree that ought to have been made in this case. I find

here a Company charged with fraud, through the medium of

its Directors—for if any fraud has been perpetrated, it must

have been perpetrated by its Directors. If the Secretary

made false representations, they were either prompted or have

been ratified b'"' the Directors ''^et the extraordinnrv character
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of the Judgment, which is the subject of this Appeal, is this

—

that the Lords Justices acquit the Directors altogether, but

find an immaterial and metaphysical creature, namely, the

Company, guilty of fraud. My Lords, I think the conclusion

originally ought to have been that there was no ground for

imputing to the Directors fraudulent representation, or fraudu-

lent withholding of any material fact ; and I believe it to be

essential in the administration of justice, that when a charge is

made involving the imputation of fraudulent misrepresentation,

or fraudulent concealment, if that charge fails, it ought to fail

with the ordinary penalty of the Court directing the party who

makes it without ground, to indemnify his antagonist in costs.

I must, therefore, submit to your Lordships that there was

no satisfactory reason for the Vice-Chancellor departing from

the true principle of the Court, in dismissing this Bill without

costs. It is undoubtedly the wiser rule to let the costs follow

as an incident to the decree. If there are grounds warranting the

refusal of the relief sought by the Bill, it is very diflficult to see

on what grounds you can assert the arbitrary power of reftising

the ordinary indemnity to a party who has been unjustly

brought into Court. I therefore, my Lords, hope that your

Lordships will concur with me in thinking that if this Decree,

made by the Lords Justices, is to be reversed, it must be

reversed with all the usual consequences ; and that, accordingly,

the petition of rehearing before the Lords Justices must be

directed to be dismissed with costs. Then, going back to the

Decree pronoimced by the Vice-Chancellor, that Decree must

be varied by directing the Bill to be dismissed with costs.

Lord Cranworth.—My Lords, my noble and learned friend

on the Woolsack has gone through this case so fully that,

concurring as I do with him in every word of what he has

addressed to your Lordships, I should have been well content

to have said not one word excent to exnress mv concurrence

:
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and I believe that I should have taken that course, were it not

that, in the course of the argument in this case, principles have

been adverted to as having been previously decided as to

which it was said some doubt existed. As two of the cases

which have been so referred to were cases which came before

your Lordships' House, when I had the honour of sitting on

the Woolsack, I think it fit to state what those cases were, and

how far I conceive that the principles decided in them were

perfectly correct.

In this case the doctrine upon which the Lords Justices

proceeded was this—that there had been such representations

made by the Directors of this Company as entitled the

Plaintiff to set aside the contract into which he had entered

with the Company through the Directors, upon the ground

that those representations were fraudulent. I may say in

passing, that I confess, considering the very great accuracy of

the learned Judge, who mainly pronounced the judgment in

the Court below, I am very much surprised at the principle

as there promulgated by him, because the charge being (so

far as it is conrectly stated in the Bill) that the Plaintiff

had been induced to enter into this contract by fraudulent

representations—that there was a good title to the land,

whereas, in fact, there was not a good title. The ground

on which the Lords Justices have proceeded is this : not that

there was not a good title, but that they were not satisfied

upon that subject, and that therefore it was a sort of doubtful

title which would warrant their interposition. Now I must

take the liberty of saying that, however that doctrine would

have applied in an executory contract, it is, to my mind,

totally inapplicable where the contract is executed and where

the Court is asked to set aside the contract upon the ground

of misrepresentation.

But. however, for the purpose of the few observations



16

Al'.

which I am abont to address to your Lordships, I will assume

that this representation had been established to be a fraudu-

lent one on the part of the Directors. The question as to the

doctrine of the Courts, which was in some degree discussed

—

I will not say called in question—in the argument, was this

:

whether the Directors can be so far considered as the repre-

sentatives of the Company as that a fraud on their part should

for any purposes be deemed the fraud of the Company ; and

a number of cases were referred to in which that doctrine was

adverted to, two of which were in this House. One which

came before this House—the case of Ranger v. The Great

Western Railway Company—was a case of great notoriety

:

it was heard at great length in the time of Lord Cottenham,

and his unfortunate death having rendered all those pro-

ceedings abortive, it came afterwards to be heard again, when

I had the honour of holding the Great Seal, and it was again

argued at very great length. The ground on which Eanger

sought relief was this:—He said, amongst other things,

" I was induced by the fraudulent representations of the

" Company to enter into contracts for making a part of the

" Line, which I contracted to make upon terms very dis-

" advantageous to myself, and terms upon which I would

" not have entered into these contracts if I had not been so

" imposed upon." One of the allegations that he set up was

this :—He said, " I was induced to enter into the contract

" for a part of the Line near Bristol by being told that the

" Engineer of the Company would point out to me the Line,"

and that the Engineer of the Company so directed to point

out the Line to him fraudulently led him to suppose that the

soil was of a character that would be infinitely less expensive

to work than in truth it turned out to be. Upon the evidence

as to these facts, it appeared to me, weighing it fully and

deliberately, that the case wholly failed to be made out, and

that there had been no such fraud at all. I therefore had no

necessity to advise, your Lordships upon the general question /
1
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of law, but I did then express my opinion, and which 1

confess I still entertain, that if an incorporated Company,

acting by an agent, induces a person to enter into a contract

for the benefit of the Company, that Company can no more

repudiate the fraudulent agent than an individual could repu-

diate him, and that, consequently, the Company are bound by

the misrepresentations of their agent.

7
1

The next case that occurred, and which was adverted to in

the argument, was a case from Scotland of this nature. The
National Exchange Bank of Glasgow raised a summons of

this nature, saying that Drew, the defender, was indebted to

them in a sum of £600, which he. Drew, had borrowed of

them. Drew said, " I am not so indebted to you at all ; and
" whatever I did, I was induced to do by your fraudulent mis-

" representations." Those fraudulent misrepresentations being

(if they were fraudulent) misrepresentations of the Directors

by whom this National Exchange Company was managed.

When the case was heard here, I was assisted by Lord

Brougham and Lord St. Leonards; and I came to the con-

clusion (that was my own opinion only), upon an investigation

of the case, that there was no loan at all—that the money had

been advanced by the Directors out of the funds of the

Company, but not at all upon the terms of a loan ; and that,

consequently, there was sufficient to show that Drew had never

been a borrower. But I added this, that the view of my
noble and learned friends who heard the case at the same time

with myself, being that that was a refined distinction, not

applicable in that case, and that there was a loan, but that it

was void on account of the fraudulent mode in which the

party had been induced to make that loan, I did not think

that I should be doing justice, if I were not to say that I

adhered to the opinion that I expressed in the case of Ranger

V. The Great Western Railway Company—that if Drew had

been induced to borrow the money by that which could be
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called a fraudulent representation on the part of those through

whom the negotiation proceeded—namely, the Directors

—

that was a fraud that would bind the Company.

My Lords, to that opinion I entirely adhere ; and I think

it would have been applicable in this case, if it had been

proved that there had been a fraudulent representation or

concealment by the Directors, in order to induce Mr. Cony-

beare to purchase—not shares in the market (that is a very

different thing), but shares belonging to the Company, namely,

forfeited shares. If the Directors, or the Secretary acting for

them, had fraudulently represented something to him which

was untrue, I then adhere to the opinion which I expressed in

the former cases, that the Company would have been bound

by that fraud. But the principle cannot be carried to the

wild length that I have heard suggested, namely, that you can

bring an action against the Company upon the ground of

deceit, because the Directors have done an act which might

render them liable to such an action. That I take not to be

the law of the land, nor do I believe that it would be the law

of the land, if the Directors were the agents of some person,

not a Company. The fraud must be a fraud that is either

personal on the part of the individual making it, or some fraud

which another person has impliedly authorised him to be

guilty of.

Adhering, therefore, to these opinions, I nevertheless

concur entirely with my noble and learned friend, that the

facts of this case are not such as to render any such principle

applicable at all.

Lord Chelmsford.—My Lords, I should have been con-

tented to leave this case upon the grounds upon which it has

been so clearly and fully put by my noble and learned friend

on the Woolsack, if I had not felt that the difference of

fit.

\
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if.
opinion which has existed between the learned Judges in the

Court of Chancery, renders it necessary, out of respect to

them, not to arrive at any conclusion upon the case without

stating clearly the reasons upon which that conclusion is

founded.

\ '

!

My Lords, I must confess that I have felt very consider-

able embarrassment in the course of this discussion, and

especially throughout the very able argument which has been

addressed to your Lordships at the Bar by the Counsel for the

Respondent, in consequence of the mode in which the case

has been presented by his Bill. He seeks to rescind a con-

tract which he has entered into for the purchase of shares in a

Company, upon the ground of fraud and misrepresentation.

Now, one would think it would not be very difficult to state a

case of that description with clearness and precision; but,

instead of a simple statement of facts and circumstances, the

Bill presents to us a confused mixture of narrative and argu-

ment, in the midst of which it is very often extremely difficult

to discover what is the exact misrepresentation upon which

the Plaintiff means to rely ; and he sums up the whole of his

statement with this vague representation. The Plaintiff

charges—"That the Defendants other than the Company
" have, both by letter and by word of mouth, admitted to

" each other and to other persons, the truth of the statements

" and charges in the Plaintiff's Bill." When he does con-

descend to a little more particularity of statement, he leaves us

in doubt whether he means to ascribe the misrepresentations

to the Secretary, or whether they are contained in the Reports

of the Directors.

\

Now, in dealing with these charges as presented, your

Lordships must, in the first place, dismiss one which is stated

in the Bill, wherein the Plaintiff charges that the Solicitor or

Secretary stated that the A Shaies were entitled, at all events,
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to tlu £C per centum prcfercntinl dividends out of the i)rofitfl

of the 8ui<l Oompany; because that statement, if made at all,

was made at a Boiird Meeting held cither in December, 1868,

or in January, Ib.Oi) (for he does not tell ma which), and that

was after the time at which he purchased his shares, and

therefore, undoubtedly, that must be entirely out of the case.

I*

I

11

1^ 1

With respect to the only debateablc ground —the question

of the title to the lands—I find it extremely difficult to drU ? •

mine whether the Plaintiff means to state that there 'as ».

misrepresentation on the part of the Directors, th.i' thc^ I. ul

an indefeasible title, or whether he merely meanti t*) allege a

concealment by them that their title wes defeasible or doubtfnl.

And yet, according to those different modes of presenting the

case, very different considerations will arise with respect to the

knowledge, or means of knowledge, which the Plaintiff pos-

sessed. If a party makes a false representation, it may be no

answer to a person complaining of being misled by it, to say

to him, "You bad the means of ascertaining the untruth of my
statement if you had thought proper to use them." The reply

to this might probably be, " Your representation put me off

*' my guard. I was entitled to place faith and reliance upon it.

" I did so; and you have no right to complain that I trusted to

"your word and looked no further." But where the fact is not

misrepresented, but concealed, and there is nothing done to

induce the other party not to avail himself of the means of

knowledge within his reach—if he neglects to do so, he may
have no right !o complain, becpus;. I.' rnorancc ^^ the fact is

attributable to his own neglig .it;c.

Now, in considering the different charges made by the

Plaintiff in this case, it will not be necessary to dwell more

*^aan very slightly upon any of them, except the one with

regard to the title to the Crown lands. With respect to the

allegation as to its being untrue that the receipts on the forty

<J
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miles of railway wliich had Ixsen completed covered the cxpen-

dllureaii'l left a profit, I find nowhere ain allegation in the

Bill of the untiudi of that statement. It probably i« meant to

b<' included in the general allegation of the unfnitli of the

reprcBciitation of the Directors, that they had Riiffic lent funds

to compUf ' the line. But with respect to tluH particular alle-

gation, so distinctly made, it is perfectly true, that ^•* tht time

that the Report was issued, which was in Decern be 1857,

the result had been that the receipts had exceeded the » en-

diture, and had left a profit—a small one—to the Oomp^iy,

Therefore, with regard to that charge it may be J'-^mistwed

without any further observation. So, again, with rt peot to

the charge that the Directors asserted that tlu » was of tb*

slightest probability that any rival line would be constru^^ted

Now I am not aware where t at allegation is made b} tn.

The Respondent does not say, or prove in any way, thai

was the slightest probability of uiy rival line being mam
the Directors positively swear ti at they had no expectatio

Buch a line being formed ; and the result has been, that

such line has been proposed.

^re

iid

of

Then, with regard to the third charge—the allegation thii

it was untrue that they had sufficient funds to complete the

line. Now that depends upon the -statements in the Bill. In

paragraphs 47 and 49, the Plaintiff charges, "That the

" Directors had good reason to doubt, when they issued their

" Report in July, 1858, their beiii • able to finish the Line

" within the capital assigned for its c« nstruction, and that some

" such doubts were actually felt." And then, in paragraph 49,

he charges, " That the Company, on the 29th July, 1858, had

" not sufficient available funds to complete their Line to

" Woodstock, and that the statement that the Company had

" sufficient funds to complete their L:ne to Woodstock, con-

" tained in the said Report of July, 1858, and made by the

" Secretary as aforesaid, were respectively untrue."
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Now it seems that these two paragraphs, taken together,

mean to assert, tliat in the month of July, 1858, the Directors

represented that they had available funds to complete the Line,

whereas they knew perfectly well that they had not sufficient

funds for that purpose. But there is no such assertion made

in the Report. The Report is merely that the experience of

the Directors leaves them no reason to doubt their being able

to finish the Line within the capital sum assigned for its con-

struction. And I must confess that there appears to me to be

no reason to say that there was anything to induce a different

belief at that time, on the part of the Directors, that the capital

assigned—that is, the sum that was set apart as capital for

which the Line was to be constructed—would be insufficient,

or that the Line would not be completed within the time.

And with regard to the assertion, that the Secretary had

alleged that they had sufficient funds to complete the Line to

Woodstock, I find that all that is said upon that subject in the

Bill is in paragraph 8, that the Secretary said, " That the Com-
" paay would have sufficient funds, not only to carry through

" their undertaking, but also to pay the stipulated interest." It

is a statement, not of a fact, but of an expectation, and there-

fore does not support the allegation of misrepresentation in

the Bill.

Then, with regard to the alleged untruth of the statement

as to the system of liquidation of the debts of the Company

every six weeks, there is not the slightest allegation in the

Bill that that was an untrue statement. The only allusion to

it is in paragraph 48, in which it is said, " The Plaintiff

" charges that, had the arrears of all kinds been prevented, by
** their boasted system of liquidating every claim once in six

" weeks, the Directors could not have failed to have ascertained

" that their funds were almost exhausted on the 30th of July."

The Bill speaks slightingly of that system. It does not say

V

.
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there was no such system established, but it insinuates that

they had not carried out that system, and that from that cause

they had not discovered the insuflficiency of the funds.

Now, if the Bill means to allege that the representation of

the Directors was, that they liquidated their debts every six

weeks, and so left no arrears, there is no proof whatever of any

such statement having been made, because all that the Report

says, is, "To remove any apprehensions of this kind" (as to

liabilities accumulating), "your Directors think it right to

" state, that the system of payment adopted in the Province

" involves the liquidation of every claim once in six weeks

;

" so that when the certificates of the Engineer and the accounts

" forwarded by the Manager are settled, the capital account is

" virtually closed up to that time." What is the meaning of

that passage in the Report ? Why, even supposing you take

the term " liquidation " in the sense of payment, all that is

asserted in that Report and represented to the Shareholders, is,

that by the system that was adopted, and which appears to

have been carried out, in the Province, of drawing bills every

six weeks, and discounting those bills for the purpose of paying

the liabilities that had then accrued due within the Province,

the arrears were kept down, and were prevented from accu-

mulating against the Company, and that is strictly and accu-

rately correct.

The only remaining part of the case to be considered, is

the question as to the title of the Company to the lands under

the Crown grants. Upon this part of the case, I confess that

I am perplexed to ascertain whether the Plaintiff means to put

his case against the Company upon the ground of misrepre-

sentation, or upon the ground of concealment; whether he

means to say, that the Company misrepresented the case, by

asserting that they had an indefeasible title, or that they con-

cealed the fact that their title was defeasible or doubtful. If
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he means to put it on the ground of misrepresentation, all that

he says upon that subject is in paragraph 10 of the Bill

—

" The said Report of July, 1858, referred to the lands of the

" said Company in terms calculated to convey to the mind an

" impression that such lands were the absolute and indefeasible

" property of the Company "— not a representation, but an

inference that was left to be drawn from the expressions used

in the Report. If it is put upon the ground of the pamphlet

which was given by the Secretary, containing the different

Acts of the Legislature, but omitting the 19th of the Queen,

then, of course, that cannot amount to misrepresentation,

unless it can be said that, by giving that pamphlet to him, the

Secretary in effect stated to him that those were all the Acts

which referred to the title to the lands.

It appears to me, therefore, that the only possible ground

upon which the Plaintiff can put this part of his case, is con-

cealment, and not misrepresentation. He states his case here

very imperfectly; for he does not state that there was any

intention on the part of the Secretary to withhold from him

the requisite information to enable him to decide upon the

title of the Company ; and even with respect to the opinion

of Mr. BuUar, he does not anywhere say that he was not

aware of that opinion, or that the knowledge of it was im-

properly withheld from him by the Company.

If the case is put upon concealment, then it must be upon

the ground of the pamphlet not containing that statute of the

19th of the Queen, upon which, as he says, the whole doubt

with regard to the validity of the title of the Company to the

Crown lands arises, or upon the ground of their withholding

from him the opinion of Mr. BuUar.

M

Now, as to the pamphlet, 1 think that the observations

which have been made at the bar are perfectly conclusive. It
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was impossible for the Plaintiff to look at that pamphlet

without seeing that those could not be all the Acts which relate

to the Company. They were confined to the St. Andrews and

Quebec Kailway Company. That Company, he would have

seen by the Acts which the pamphlet contained, had come to

an end in some way or other by some Act of the Legislature,

and that the new Company, with which he was dealing, must

have come in its place ; and therefore he would have been

necessarily led to inquire what were the other Acts which

related to the title to these lands.

With respect to the opinion of Mr. Bullar, I wish to guard

myself against its being supposed that I acquiesce entirely in

the view which was presented to your Lordships, that it was

not necessary for the Company, having the opinion of their

conveyancer that their title was a doubtful one, to communi-

cate that to the Plaintiff. If the Company had withheld

intentionally from the Plaintiff the Act of the 19th of the

Queen, upon which the doubt as to the title arises, then, I

think, it would have been a very undue and improper con-

cealment not to have communicated to him th«^ fact that Mr.

Bullar had given an opinion that the title was a doubtful one;

and the omission of the 19tli of the Queen from the pamphlet

given to the Plaintiff, and the concealment of the opinion of

Mr. Bullar, might have made out against the Company a case

of concealment ; but, it is quite clear, that the circumstance of

the delivery of that copy of the Acts with the omission of the

19th of the Queen was not an intentional concealment. It is

not imputed to the Company, even by the Plaintiff himself in

his Bill, that they did intend to conceal that part of their title.

It was impossible that they could have intended it. He must

have known that there were other Acts ; and, therefore, the

question really comes to this—whether if the case is put, as it

must be put, on the ground of concealment, it can be com-

petent to the Plaintiff to complain that the Company deceived
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him, when he had not merely, as it appears to me, the means

of knowledge in his power, but he must have had actual

knowledge of the very circumstance, to the omission of which

he attributes his having been misled into this contract; because,

as was observed by my noble and learned friend on the

Woolsack, before the shares were given to the Plaintiff he

must have read the articles of association, and the articles of

association contained a recital of the whole of the title of the

Company to these lands, including the omitted Act of the

19th of the Queen. It is impossible, as it appears to me,

under these circumstances, that the Plaintiff can properly and

justly complain that there has been an undue concealment,

which entitles him to come forward and to insist upon rescind-

ing the contract into which he has entered.

But, my Lords, assuming that there has been either mis-

representation or undue concealment, the Plaintiff's case still

falls extremely short of what is requisite against the Com-

pany, unless he can show that the title to the lands was a

defeasible or doubtful title; because, if he asserts that the

Company stated that it was an indefeasible title, or if he

asserts that they concealed from him tlie fact that it was a

doubtful or a defeasible title, it is clear that he has no case

against them, unless he can show that the fact which is

alleged to have been concealed existed, and that the title

really was doubtful or defeasible.

Now, upon that subject the only possible hesitation which

I could feel would arise from the respect which I sincerely

entertain for the opinion of Lord Justice Turner. It appears

to me, upon an examination of the different Acts to which we

have been referred, that there can be no doubt whatever that

the title was a good and perfect title to those two Crown

grants of March and August, 1858. That may be clearly

shown by a very short reference to the Acts themselves.

;
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The grants in question were made nnder the authority of an

Act of the Colonial Legislature of the 12th of the Queen.

That Act related to the St. Andrews and Quebec Railway

Company. But the undertaking of the St. Andrews and

Quebec Railway Company was transferred—by an agreement

between the Companies, ratified by an Act of the Imperial

Legislature, in the 20th and 2l8t of the Queen—to the present

Company, the Appellants in this case j and all the powers,

rights, and privileges of the St. Andrews and Quebec Railway

Company are now vested in the Appellants' Company.

Now, the powers and rights and privileges possessed by

the St. Andrews and Quebec Railway Company depend upon

four Acts of the Colonial Legislature, of the 10th, 11th, 12th

and 19th of the Queen. Under the 10th of the Queen certain

portions of Crown lands were to be granted for the Railway

track and dep6ts—what is called the belt of land for the con-

struction of the Railroad. And then it is provided, ** That if a

" part of the Railroad (that is, the part between St. Andrews
" and Woodstock) was not completed and in fiill operation

** within the space of ten years, all and every the grants of

" land and the rights and privileges conferred by this Act,

" shall be utterly null and void, and the land and privileges

" shall revert to and revest in Her Majesty, as fully as if no

" grant had been made." And then, by the 4th section, for

the encouragement of the undertaking, it is enacted, " That on

" the completion of the said part of the contemplated Rail-

" road" (which means, of course, the part between St.

Andrews and Woodstock), " it shall be lawful for the Com-
" pany, at their own proper costs and charges" (and so on),

to choose and select 20,000 acres of land, which is to be

granted to them.

Now, there can be no doubt (and it is necessary to dwell a

little upon this) that, under this 10th of the Queen, thecte grants
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of the 20,000 acres of land were to be absolute and indefeasible

grants, because they were not to be made until the Railway-

was completed between St. Andrews and Woodstock ; and the

other grants, which were to become void, were only to become

void in the event of that part of the Eailroad not being

completed.

Then, under the 11th of the Queen, there are further

benefits granted with regard to allotments of land on each side

of the Line still to be made, on the completion of the said

part of the said contemplated Railway, and which are clearly

therefore to be absolute and indefeasible grants.

My Lords, that was the state of things when the 12tli of

the Queen was passed. The Company were entitled to receive

grants of lands, which would be forfeited upon their failure to

complete the Line within a specified time, but they were

absolute and indefeasible grants upon the completion of the

Line. Then the statute of the 12th of the Queen recites, that

it is advisable that further encouragement should be given to

the St. Andrews and Quebec Railway Company. Now, how

was that further encouragement proposed to be given? It

was proposed to be given by enabling the Company to receive

grants of lands, not upon the completion of the Railway, but

ujx)n the expenditure of a certain sum of money upon the Line,

namely, £10,000, upon which they were to receive 10,000

acres ; and for every additional £10,000 expended they were

to have an additional grant of 10,000 acres. Now observe, it

was " for the greater encouragement of the undertaking."

This grant was to be substituted for the grant which was to

have been made under the previous Acts, and which was only to

be made upon the completion of the Line, but, when made, was

of course to be absolute and indefeasible ; and, therefore, one

would say at once, that this being substituted as an additional

encouragement, at all events it would be as absolute and

I,
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as indefeasible as the former grant, for wliich the Legislature

intended to substitute it. It would be no encouragement at

all to lay out money upon the Line, if the promoters of the

undertaking were told that they should receive upon a certain

expenditure conditional grants, of which after all they would

be deprived, supposing they failed to complete the Line within

the specified time.

Now, that being the state of things, the 19th of the Queen,

this Act of the Legislature upon which all the doubt is said to

arise, was pass.ed. It recites the Acts of the 10th, 11th and

12th of the Queen. It recites that grants of Crown lands

had, under the recited Acts or some of them, been made to

the Company ; and it enlarges the time for the completion of

the Railway to four years from the time of the Act coming into

operation, when, if the Line is not completed, " all and every

" the grants of land, and the rights and privileges conferred

" by" the several facility Acts, are to be "utterly null and

" void, and the land and privileges " to revert to the Crown.

Then it recites the facility Act (as it is called) of the 12th of

the Queen, enlarging the time for the completion of the Kail-

road ; and then, immediately following upon that is the 7th

section, upon which the doubt is said to arise—" The several

" grants and appropriations of Crown lands respectively made
" to or for the benefit of the Company are by this Act con-

" firmed, and shall be valid and effectual to all intents and

" purposes whatsoever." Now it is quite clear that that

section can have no other reference than to the grants that

were made under the 12th of the Queen.

But then it may be said, Well, but if those grants were

absolute and indefeasible, why should you require any section

in this Act of the 19th of the Queen to render them valid and

effectual to all intents and purposes ? Well, I have no doubt

at all that without that section those gi'ants which had been
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previously made to the St. Andrews and Quebec Railway

Company would have been absolute and indefeasible grants.

But it seemed to be thought that the general words of the

2nd section, annulling the grants, if the Line were not

completed within four years, were sufficiently large to embrace

those grants! which had been made as an encouragement to

the undertaking; and, therefore, this 7th section was intro-

duced out of abundant caution to render those grants clearly

valid and effectual to all intents and purposes; and some

stress may be laid upon the expression that we find in the

7th section. The 2nd section has described the grants of

land and the rights and privileges conferred, relating to the

Company, and here, in the 7th section, the words are, " the

several grants and appropriations of Crown lands respectively,

made to or for the benefit of the Company"— clearly, as it

appears to me, distinguishing between those grants wliich

were made Cor the construction of the Railway and those

grants which were made for the encouragement of the under-

taking by the 2nd section of the 1 2th of the Queen. Now, if

that is the proper construction of that Act of the 19th of the

Queen (and I entertain no doubt whatever upon the subject),

that, of course, would only relate to the grants which had

already been made to the St. Andrews and Quebec Railway

Company ; but then it leaves that section of the 12th of the

Queen untouched and unrepealed. The present Company,

the Appellants' Company, have become possessed of the

undertaking of the St. Andrews and Quebec Railway Com-

pany, and are entitled to all their rights and privileges ; and,

amongst others, they are entitled to the benefit of that clause

in the Act of the 12th of the Queen, by which grants may be

made to them, and, as I think, without the slightest doubt,

absolute and indefeasible grants, from time to time of 10,000

acres, upon the expenditure of £10,000 by the Company.

Therefore, under that power the grants of March and

August, 18r)8, Avcre made of 20,000 acres and 30,000 acres

—

'*
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there having "been an expenditure, as we understand, corre-

sponding with those grants; for hough those grants are

expressed as absolute grants, without describing or reciting

the consideration for which they were made, there can be no

doubt whatever that those grants were made under the powers

of the 12th of the Queen, and that the grants are absolute

and indefeasible ; and therefore, even supposing that the

Plaintiff could put his case and could found his case upon any

misrepresentation or concealment on the part of the Company,

still his case must fail, because he cannot show that there has

been any misrepresentation or improper concealment.

Now, I only wish further to say one word with regard to

what has fallen from my noble and learned friend near me
upon the subject of the decisions which have taken place as to

representations made by Directors, or officers of a Company,

binding the Company. As to the question, how far the con-

versations which are said to have taken place at the interview

of the Plaintiff with the Secretary before he thought of taking

these shares can be considered, under any circumstances, to

be binding upon the Company so as to enable the Plaintiff, as

against them, to rescind the contract into which he has

entered—upon that question I do not think it at all necessary

to express any opinion. But, with regard to what my noble

and learned friend has said, I think there will be found a very

important distinction, which, perhaps, may reconcile all the

cases, between contracts which have been entered into with

Companies through Directors, for shares belonging to the

Company, and transactions which have been entered into by

individual Shareholders as between themselves and others. It

may be tliat any fraud or misrepresentation on the part of

Directors in dealing with shares belonging to the Company

may not make the Company liable for the deceit and fraud of

their agents, but may prevent their deriving any benefit from

it, by forbidding their holding the party to the purchase of
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shares which he has been induced to take by means of frau-

dulent misrepresenfations of their agents ; but intjportant con-

siderations still will arise, where the misrepresentations are

said to be contained in reports or balance sheets which are

intended for the Shareholders only, but which b'-./e been pub-

lished to the world at large. How far any person may come

in and say that he was led by these representations, which

were not made to him, but which were intended for the Share-

holders of the Company, to take sliares, and that the state-

ments are untrue, and that therefore he ought to be relieved

from his contract—how far that may be the case, is a question

worthy of very serious consideration, and it is one upon which

I do not feel it at all necessary at present to enter. Other

difficulties may be suggested, but it is sufficient to dispose of

this case by saying that there is no proof whatever of any

misrepresentation—that the only ground upon which the Lords

Justices have proceeded, that is, with regard to the title to the

lands being doubtful, is entirely removed. There is no doubt

whatever that the title is a gooci '•nd absolute and indefeasible

title ; and therefore, upon the grounds which I have stated, I

agree with my noble and learned friends that the Decree of the

Lords Justices ought to be reversed, and that the Decree of

the Vice-Chancellor ought to be varied in the way which has

been proposed by my noble and learned friend on the Woolsack,

because I think that it is always right that where parties

charge fraud, and fail upon that charge, their Bill should be

dismissed, with costs.

i

Order appealed fronij Reversed.

Petition of Re-hearing before the Lords Justices, to be

Dismissed, with Costs.

Decree of the Vice-Chancellor varied, by directing Plaintiff^s

Bill to be dismissed with Costs.

Blanch.ird A Sons, Trlnters, G2, MUlbiink Street, ^Ycstnlinstcr.
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